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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF STARLITE LIGHTING LIMITED
Report on the Standaione ndian Accounting Standards (ind AS) Financial Statements

We have pudited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Starfite Lighting Limited [“the
Comparn”], which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 the Statement of Profit and Loss
{includmng Gther Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Fauity for the year then ended, and 2 summary of the significant accounting poficies and other
explanatory information.

Marnagement’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
theCompanies Act, 2013 {“the Act”}) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ingd AS
financialstatements ta give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance {including
cther comprehensive incomel, cash flowsand changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, cluding theindian Accounting Standards specified in
the Companles (indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 {as amended) under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility #iso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records inaccordance with the
proussions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and forpreventing and detocting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and appiication of appropriateaccounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design,implementation and maintenance
of zdeguate internal financial controls,that were operatingeffectively for ensuring the accuracy and
compigieness of the acgounting records, relevant to thepreparation and presentation of the standalone
ind AL hroncial statements that give a true and fair view and are free frommaterial misstatement,
whether duo to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibitity

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these standalone tnd AS financial statements based on our
sudht,

We have taken inte account the provisions of the Actand the Rules made thereunder including the
accounting and auditing standards andmatters which are required to be included i the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,

We conducted our audit of the standalone ind AS Snancial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicabie authoritative
pronouncaments sssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standargs and
pronouncemants regusre that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform thesgan o
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from
fmaterighmisstatement.

Address: Gokul Nagar 'B', 1184/4, Fergusson College Road, Shivajinagar, Pune - 411 005,
Phone No.: 91 - 20 - 2553 5405/ 2553 5426 / 2553 6624
Email 1D: info@ssandco.com Website: www.ssandco.com
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An audit involves performing procedures te obtain audit evidence about the amounts and thedisclosures
in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
iudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the standalone Ind AS
finandial statements, whether dueto fraud or error. In making those risk assessments; the auditor
considers internat financial controlrelevant to the Company's preparation of the standalone Ind AS
financial staternents that give a true and fair view, in orderto design audit procedures that are
approfiriale in the circumnstances. An audit also includes evaluatingthe appropriateness of the accounting
poficies used and the reasonablieness of the accounting estimatesmade by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financialstatements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
forour audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.®

Opinion

In our cpinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
thestoresaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
mianner sorequired and give 2 true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted inlndia, of the state of affsirs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its loss {including other
comprehensive income), its cash flowsand the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

(Other Matter

The financial information of the Compsny for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the transition date
spening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 included in these standalone Ind AS financial statements, are
- based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2016 and
March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 {as
amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed an unmodified opinion dated May 23, 2016
and September 22, 2015 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences
i accounting principles adopied by the Company on transition to the ind AS have been audited by us.

Cur opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

. Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of India
in tarms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act ("the Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the
heoks and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according 1o the information and

expianations given (o us, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order,

As reguired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

i@} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief ware necessary for the purposes of our audit.




' f“)k’%a;’a{/ f\%@ér 9“ %{? Continuation Sheet No.:

Chartered Accountanis

(b} 'n our opirion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(£} Tne Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive incorne), the
Coash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity deait with by thisReport are in
agreement with the books of account.

d} in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the indian
Accounting Standardsspecified under Sectien 133 of the Act.

fe} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
201 7taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as onMarch
31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

{1 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over finzncial reporting of
theCompany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Report
“nAnnexure B,

{g) With respect 1o the other matters 1o be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance withRule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditcrs) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
atirknowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

5 The Company does ncothave any pending litigations as at March 31, 2017 which would
impact its financial position,

i, The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31,
' 2017 for which there were no material foreseeable losses.

£, There were no amounts which were required to betransferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 21, 2017,

i, The company has provided reguisite disclosures in the financial statements as to holdings
' as well as dealings in Specified bank notes during the pericd from 8" November 2016 to
30" December 2016,

For Sharad Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 109931W

{Sunil 5. Kadam}
Place: Pune Partner

Date: f& ? M AY 2 01? Membership Number 42756
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Annexure A to independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in the independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Starlite Lighting Lirmted
an the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017

{a] The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of fixed assets.

(b}

The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management dwing the
year and no material discrepsncies have been noticed on such verification. in our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

{c} The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets (o the financial
staternents, are held in the name of the Company.

H The physical verification of inventory have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
-Mapagement during the year. Ipn our opinion, the freguency of verification is reasonable. The
company is maintaining proper records of inventory and nc material discrepancies were noticed
on physical verification carried out at the end of the year.

i The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnershins or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act,
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3{i), (iii{a), {ii){b} and (ili)ic) of the said Order are not
applicable 1o the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made-any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties cavered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
5t} of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

= *he Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74,75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

yi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under  sub-
section (1§ of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.
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vil, (8) According to the infermation and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
sxamined by us, in our gpinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in raspect of Sales tax, though there has been a slight delay in 3 few cases, and is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, service tax, duty of custormns, duty of excise, and other material statutory
cues, as appiicable, with the appropriate authorities.

{b) in our opinton and according to the information and explanation given to us the dues outstanding of
income-tax, sales tax, secvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, cess and any other statutory
dues 10 the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

wiil. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of joans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

i, The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
{ncluding debt nstruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{ix} of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

. During the course of our examination of the bocks and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanstions given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

A The Company has paid for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
smandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As the Company is not 2 Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to i, the

xil,
provisions of Clause 3{xit) of the Order are not appticable to the Company.
i, The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions

of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act.  The details of such related party transactions have been
disciosed in the financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014,
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XiV. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3xiv} of the Order are not applicable te the Company.

V. The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xv] of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

X, The Company is not reguired 10 be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Azt 1934, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xvi] of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

- - For Sharad Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 109931W

_ Sunil 5.Kadam
" Place; Pune Partner

Date: gy * Membership Number 42756
Date ? ? M}l\/ ?ﬂ?? embership Number
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Annexure B to the Auditor's Reports

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act
2013 {'the Act’)

We have sudited the internal controls over financisls reporting of Starlite Lighting Limited {‘The Company’) as
of 317 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
“that date.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statemants

the Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
- Fingnoal Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ['ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
aceuracy sn¢ completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an oginion on the Company's internal financial controls aver financial roporting

Sbased an our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of internal
financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICA
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent appilicable to an
audit of internal financial cantrols, bath applicable te an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adeguate internal financial controis over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
sueh controls operated effectively in alt material respects.,

Cur autit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internai financial
controls syster over financizl reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
sontrois aver financisl reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financral reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
audinor’s udgement, mcluding the assessment of the risks of maternal misstatement of the finsncial
statements, whether due to fraud or errorn

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
avdit opinien on the Company’s internat financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial contrel over financia! reporting is a process designed to provide reascnable

assurance regarding the reliabiity of financiat reporting and the preparation of financial statemants for

axterna! purposes in eccordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control pver financia! reporting includes these policies and procedures that

1. peritain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispasitions of the assets of the Company;

Z. provide reasonabie assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expengityres of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the Management
and directars of the Company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acqguisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inhergnt Himitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibifity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may ocour and not be detected, Alsg, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
finangial reporting to future pericds are subject to the risk that the internai financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies of procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, In all material raspects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal finandal controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
21Y March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteriz established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal
Financial Controls Ovar Firancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

e For Sharad Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 109931W

(M

4

{Sunil's. Kadam)
Place: Puny . Partner

Date: r? ? MAY 2017 | Membership No.42756




Starlite Lighting Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017

Amaount in Rs.

Particulars Note Ne. March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,32,80,01,395 1,42,15,43,500 1,16,41,25,268
Capital work in progress 3 - 2,83,00,534 17,48,14,635
Other Intangible assets 4 38,69,481 52,35,005 66,98,184
Financial assets
Investments 5(a} 10,89,500 106,88,500 13,59,500
Trade receivabies 5(b} 331,47,488 1,42,83,495% 1,08,61,748
Other financial assets 5{d} 2,15,22,302 3,49,07,124 4,85,54,617
Deferred tax assets {net} & 11,54,35,351 5,22,85,935 4,59,45,834
Other Non-Current Assets 7 586,56 372 11,10,74,262 13,1971 863
Total Non-Current Assets 1,54,17,25,883 1,66,87,23,355 1,58,43,31,648
Current assets
Inventories & 55,72,21,6861 44,85 84 053 32,51,24,083
Financial assets
Trade receivables 5{h} 43,10,76,146 38,07,37,812 37,55,30,047
Cash and casn equivalents S{e} 1,62,26,146 1,21,40,551 1,10,33,819
Other financial assets 5d) 1,33,84,822 1,36,47 493 1,36,47,493
Othar current aszets 9 18 35 10,771 10,45.19,421 38,84 07,347
1,20,14,19,545 56,06,28,330 1,11,37,42,949
Total Current Assets 1,20,14,19,545 96,06,29,330 1,11,37,42,949
;TOYAL ASSETS 2,74,31,45,434 2.62.93,52 686 2,69,80,74,598
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
fEQuity
iEqutty share capital 10{&) 12,50,00,000 12,50,00,000 12,50,00,000
Other eguity
Reserves and surplus 11 {34,96,93,615} {13,54,21,858) {7,76.82,386)
Oinher reserves 11 - -
Total equity {22,46,93,615) {1,04,21,858) 4,73,17,614
LIABILITIES
Non-current lizbilities
IFinancial Nabilities
1Barrowings 12(a) 70,70,58,235 1,04,70,47,5%6 1.00,47,85,60%
iOther financial habaities 12{b) 63,61,13,445 56.04,30,904 54,26,17.8/9
Emplovee defined benefit liabilities 13 97,15,173 71,85.984 49,771,261
Other non-current yabilities - :
i Total non-current liabilities 1,35,28,86,857 1,61,51,64,484 1,55,23,74,748
Current liabitities
iFinancial ltabilities
'3arrowings 12{a) 80,96,88,096 72,58,45 070 85,98,44,584
[Teade payables 12{c} 34,16,79,192 14,48,50,982 14,64,08,700
Other financiat habitities 12(b} 35,74,74,606 11,73,54,777 6,24,13 656
i.mployee defined benefit labiities 13 75,05,833 70,811,985 17,78,825
Cther Current Liabilities 14 6,36,04,465 3,477 266 2,736,371
Total Current Liabilites 1,61,49,52,183 1,02,46,10,060 1,09,83,82.236
Total liabilities 2,56,78,39,049 2,63,97,74 544 2,65,07,56,984
TOTAL EQUITY AND LABILITIES 2,74,31,45 434 2,62,93,52 686 2,69,80,74,598
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1-27 '

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Notes referred to above form an integrat part of the Balanco sheet

As per our report of aven date

For Sharad Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 109931W

D@WM

For and on behaif of Board of Directors
of Starfite Lighting Limited

C__._,,,,___Jl“;_.;_
{Sunil S\ Kadam) {Shekhar Bajaj} Ravind%Bha{atl}
Partner Chairman ° Managing Birecter
MRN: 42756 DIN: 00089358
Piace:‘hi’uﬂe

R MR

M- Ne » ACA 24L6¢
CeMPANY SECRETARY



Starlite Lighting Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017

Amount in Rs,

to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

__Particulars Note No.|  March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
'Revenue from operations 15 1,20,25,74,677 1,58,18,19,226 '
Other income 16 6,56,22,492 6,67,35,431
Other gains/{losses) - -
Total Income 1,26,81,97,169 1,64,85,54,657
EXPENSES
Cost of raw material consumed 17(a) 83,67,34,159 1,15,25,77,757
(increase}/ decrease in inventories of finished 17th (1,13,52,432) (1,77,44,488)
goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
Excise duty 12,13,25,684 15,82,84,600
Employee benefits expense i8 5,03,89,152 5,05,32,545
(Depreciation and amortization expense 19 5,31,14,880 4,37,17,750
Other expenses 20 4,87,75,235 5,57,18,489
Finance Cost 21 34,63,19,760 26,90,96,755
Total expense 1,54,53,06,438 1,71,21,83,408
Profit/{loss)before exceptional items and tax from {27,71,09,268) (6,36,28,751)
continuing operations
Exceptional items - -
Profit/(loss)before and tax from continuing {27,71,09,268) {6,36,28,751)
operations
(1) Current tax
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - -
(3) Deferred tax {6,31,49,416} (63,44,101)]
Income tax expense (6,31,49,416) {63,44,101)
Profit for the year from continuing operations {21,39,59,852) {5,72,84,650)
Profit/{loss) for the year {(21,39,59,852) {5,72,84,650)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified contd..




Stariite Lighting Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
Other Comprehensive income

Amount in Rs.

Other comprehensive income not to be rectassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Re-measurement gains {losses) on defined benefit plans
income tax effect

Net other comprehensive income not to be reciassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

Profit/(ioss) for the year

(3,11,905) (4,54,822)
(3,11,905) (4,54,822)
(3,11,505)| {4,54,822)
(3,11,505)] (4,54,822)

{21,39,59,852)

{5,72,84,650)

Total comprehensive income for the year {21,42,71,757) {5,77,39,472)

lEarnings per share for continuing operations

- Basic -27.85 -7.50
-Diluted -27.85 -7.50

NOTLS FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1-27

For Sharad Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 109931wW

{Sunii S, Kadam)
Partner
MRN: 42756

Place: Punea
Date: &

7 MAY 2017

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

of Starlite Lighting Limited

-

P B S

{Shekhar Bajaj) avin 3
Chairman Managisg Directo
DIN: 00089358 DIN: 0@148936

Lokt

Ravinpra 1. UrTekag

M:Ne . Aca 2966¢

Company Secrerary




Starlite Lighting Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2017

Amount in Rs

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to nat cash flows:;
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant

and eguipment

Fnance costs {including fair value change in financial instruments}

Finance income {including fair value change in financial

Instruments)
Dividend income

Working capital adjustments:

Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayments
Increase in inventories

Movement in Non Current Assets

Movements in provisions, gratuity

Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in Current Lighilities

Decrease in other financial assets

Increase in other financial liabilities

Difference in FA Block Deduction and sale value

Income Tax Pald
Net cash flows from operating activities

investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Dwideng Received

Net cash flows used in investing activities
Financing activities

interest Paid

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash flows from/{used in) financing activities

(27,71.09,268)
5,31,14,880
34,63,19,760
(14,66,565)

{87,226}

(11,81,93,676)

{10,76,37,608)
5,58,02,712
31,66,475%

19,68,28,230 |

2,81,27,200
{(2,62,671)
35,53,02,370
2,35,99,626

55,85,04,239
55,85,04,239
23,15,06,382
(18,54,13,375)

14,66,565
87,226

4,80,47,447 |

(34,63,19,760)
{25,61,46,331)

{60,24,66,091)

(6,36,28,751)

4,37,17,750

26,90,96,755
(26,11,100}

(1,08,950)

27,50,28,930
(12,44,59,570)
3,45,45,094
25,17,783
(15,57,738)
65,40,855
7,32,54,148
7,59,14,475

58,82,49,318
58,82,49,318
7,05,99.62¢6
{29,56,28,143)
46,11,100
1,08,950
{22,63,08,467)

(26,90,96,755)
{9,17,37,526)

{36,08,34,281)

Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 40,85,595 11,086,570
Net foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 1,21,40,551 1,10,33,97%
Cash and cash equivalents at yvear end 1,62,26,146 1,21,40,551
Cash and cash equivalents reported in Bzlance Sheet 1,62,26,1456 1,21,40,551
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1-27

For Sharad Shah & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors o

Chartered Accountants

{Sunil §} Kadam)
Partner
MRN: 42755

Place: Pune

of Starlite Lighting Limited

{Shekhar Bajaj} {Ravindra\Bharati)
Chatrman Managing/Director

DIN: 00089358 DiNg 00148935

QW’J}L‘/M Ravinora T UtTeksar CS
M.No. ACA 2966



Starlite Lighting Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2017

a.

Eguity Share Capital

Equity Shares of INR 10 each issued and fully paid INR

At 1 April 2015 12,50,00,000

At 31 March 2016 12,50,00,000

Increase/(decrease} during the year -

At 31 March 2017 12,50,00,000

Other Equity Amount in Rs.
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total

Capital Securities Retained Earnings
Reserve Premium
Reseryve
As at April 1, 2015 6,46,11,857 3,50,00,00C {17,72,94,243) {(7,76,82,386)]
Erofit for the period {5.72,84,650) {5,72,84,650}
Other Comprehensive income {net} -
Total Comprehensive income - - (5,72,84,650) {5,72,84,650)
Adiustment w.r.t. Acturial Gain on Gratuity {4,54,822) (4,54,822)
At 31 March 2016 6,46,11,857 3,50,00,000 (23,50,33,715) {13,54,21,858)
L Amount in Rs.
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total
Capital Securities Retained Earnings
Reserve Premium
Reserve
As at April 1, 2016 6,46,11,857 3,50,00,000 (23,50,33,715) {13,54,21,858)
Profit for the period - - (21,38,59,852) {21,39,59,852)
Other Comprehensive Income (net) _ - .
Total Comprehensive income - - {21,39,59,852} (21,35,59,852)
Adjustment w.r.t. Acturial Gain on Gratuity {3.11,505) {3,11,905)
At 31 March 2017 6,46,11,857 | 3,50,00,000 |  (44,93,05472)]  (34,96,93,615)
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1. Corporate information

The standalone financial statements comprise financial statements of Starlite Lighting Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2017. The company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in indfa. The registered office of the company is located at No. 6,MIDC Satpur,
Trambakeshwar Road, Nashik

Stariite Lighting Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of Lighting Products.
The company manufactures CFL and LED Lamps alongwith its components and accessories, The company
has diversified in the business of manufacturing of Water Heaters and Air Conditioners. The company caters
to needs of Indian markets as well as international markets. The financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupee (INR}. The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on May 26, 2017

2, Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended}and presentation
reguirements of Division il of Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, {Ind AS compiiant Schedule lil),

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Indian GAAP, including accounting standards notified under the section
133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ruies,
2014, These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 are the first thecompanyhas
prepared in accordance with Ind-AS.Refer note on ‘First Time Adoption of Ind AS' for an explanation of
how the transition from previous GAAP fo Ind AS has affected SLL’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows which is separately presented in the annual report.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the foilowing assets
and lizbilities which have been measured at fair value:

. Certain financial assets and lizbilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments),

° Degosits for Operating Lease.

. Provisions relating to Employee Benefits (Gratuity and Leave Encashments)

In addition, the carrying values of recognised assets and liabilities that are designated as hedged items in
fair value hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are adjusted to record changes in
the fair vaiues atfributable to the risks that are being hedged in effective hedge relationships. The
financial statements are presented in INR, except when otherwise indicated.
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a}

Current versus non-current classification

The presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

s Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realised within twelve maonths after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liahility for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A lizbility is current when:

» it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

. it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reparting period, or

. There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liahilities a5 non-current.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Foretgn currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initislly recorded by the entity at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Maonetary assets and liahilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
with the exception of monetary itemns that are designated as part of the hedge of the Company’s
net investment of a foreign operaticn. These are recognised i OCh untit the net investment is
disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable 1o exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCl.

Nor-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foretgn cuwrrency are
translated using the exchange rates &t the dates of the initial transactions. Non-rmonetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair vaiue is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
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measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair vatue of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair vaiue gain or loss is
recognised in CGCl or profit or loss are aiso recognised in OCH or profit or loss, respectively).

¢} Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each baiance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

» Inthe principal market for the asset or fiability, or

* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
lizbility

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or tiability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
ochservable inpuls and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

At each reperting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are reguired to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents. ‘

for the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
lizbilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or fiability

d} Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivabie, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
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government. The company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it
is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to
inventory and credit risks. The company recognizes income on accrual basis. However, where the
ultimate collection of the same lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed to the
extent of uncertainty.

Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 18 issued by the ICAI, the Company has assumed that
recavery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account. This is for the reason that itis a liability
of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods are
sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account, revenue includes
excise duty.

However, sales tax/ value added tax {VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it
is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly,
it1s excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
Saie of goods

Revenue frcm the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received ar receivable, net of returns and aliowances,
trade discounts and volume rebates. The company's prices are net of Warranty and any claims from the
customers

> are settlea by corresponding claim from the RM Supplier or through discount.

1 Domestic Sales are recognized, on dispeteh from the point of sale, i.e., when the risks and
rewards are wansferred to the buyer.

2 - Export sales are recognized on the date of the mate’s receipt/shipped on board and initiaily
recorded at the relevant exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

3} Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with
reascnable accuracy and conditions precedent to claim are fulfilled.

interest incorne

For aill debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactiy
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorier period, where appropriate, 10 the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interast rate, the Company
astimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terins of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

s

i
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fil.

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is

generaily when shareholders approve the dividend.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-|

ine

basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its

operating nature.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as ihcome on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates toc an asset, it is
recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected usefu! life of the related asset,

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at
fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments. When loans or
similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below
the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair vaiue and the government
grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds
received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financia
lianilities,

The company has been issued eligibility certificate under Package Scheme of Incentives, 2007. Under
the scheme, the company is entitled for Industrial Promoticnal Subsidy of Rs. 9,545.95 |akhs or o
the extent of the amount of taxes payable under MVAT Act ,2002 & CST Act 1956, by the project in
respect of sale of finished products , eligible for incentive after adjustment of set off or other credit
available within a period of seven vears , whichever is fower . The Eligibility Certificate is issued in
respect of manufacturing of Compact Fluorescent Lamps and its accessories, Tube Lights, Luminaries
and its accessories, Electronic Iron , Induction Cookers . Electric Fans and its accessories and
Electronic Domestic Appliances and its Accessories. In addition to these products, the Company has
considered taxes paid by it , in respect of additional items / products for ciaiming Industrial
Promotional Subsidy , for which application to the implementing agency has been made,

f} Taxes

i} Current income tax

Current income tax assets and lizbilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
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or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax retating to items recognised outside profit or foss is recognised outside profit or
loss. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC! or
directly in equity. Management pericdicaily evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate,

i}y Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial. recognition of goodwill or an asset or
Hiability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

In respect of taxsble temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interesis in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controiled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit wili be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused rtax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

except:
When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the

irtial recognition of an asset or liability in & transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or foss

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is prebable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient vaxabie profit will be available to aliow alf or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets ars re-ascessed at
sach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised cutside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correfation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes refate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added tax, except:

. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisiticn of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

° When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part
of receivables or payables In the balance sheet.

Non-current assets held for distribution to owners and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal as held for sale/ distribution to owners if
their carrying armounts wili be recovered principally through a salz/ distribution rather than
through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale/ distribution should indicate that it
is uniikely that significant changes to the sale/ distribution will be made or that the decision to
sell/ distribute will be withdrawn, Management must be committed to the sale/ distribution
expected within one year from the date of classification,

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-
current assets when the exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for heid for sale/
distribution classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal of company is available
for immediate sale/ distribution in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales/ distribution of such assets {or disposal Companys), its sale/ distribution is
highly prebable; and it wili genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale/
distribution of the asset or disposal Company to be highly probable when:

s The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset {or disposal
Company),
e An active programme to locate a buyer and compiete the plan has been initiated {if

zpplicable),
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h)

B The asset {or disposal Company) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is
reasonable in relation to its current fair value,

e The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification, and

B Actions reguired to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
tg the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale/for distribution to owners and disposal Companys are measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell/ distribute. Assets and
liahilities classified as held for sale/ distribution are presented separately in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/ distribution
to owners are not depreciated or amartised.

Discentinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are
presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued cperations in the
statement of profit and loss.

All other notes to the financial statements mainly inctude amounts for continuing operations,
uniess otherwise mentioned.

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recogniticn criteria are met.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are reguired tc be replaced ai intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when 2 major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amourt of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. The present vaiue of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use
is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

a) Tangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and sccumulated
impairment losses, if any,

i, Freehold land is carried at histerical cost

ii. Leasehold tand, buildings (including leasehold iand appurtenant thereto! are carried at histarical
cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation over the lease period. Cost of renovation of
leased premises is capitalised as leasehold improvernent cost.

i} Subsequerﬁ expenditures related to an item of fixed assets are added to its book value onfy if
they increase the future benefits from the existing asset teyond its previously assessed standard
of performance.
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i. ltems of fixed assets that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at
the lower of value and net reslizable value and are shown separately in the financial statements. Any
expected loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which
are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

c) Assets which are depreciated over useful iife/residual value different than those indicated by schedule il
are as under;

Sr.No. | Asset Account Name Useful Life - Years

1 Land ~ Leasehold 99
2 Buiiding Factory 30
3 Plant & Machinery 30
4 Electrical Installation 10
5 Furniture & Fixture 10
6 Computers 3
7 Vehicies 8
8 Tools & Equipment 15
9 Office Equipment 5

P10 Software - Intangible 3

s |

As per schedule Il of Companies Act 2013, Life of plant and machinery is prescribed 15 vears. Companys
considers its life to 30 years taking in account technical evaluation.

d) Transition to ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, 5LL has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and
eguipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and used those carrying
value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

a} Investment properties

Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with
the carrying vatue for all of its investment property as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial
statements as deemed cost at the transition date, viz., 1 April 2015

investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transacticn costs. Subsequent to
initial recogrition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumuiated impairment lgss, if any.
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The depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date of
originai purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management
estimate, depreciates the building over estimated useful lives which are different from the
useful life prescribed in Schedule il to the Cempanies Act, 2013. The management believes that
these estimated useful lives are realistic and refiect fair approximation of the period over which
the assets are likely to be used,

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or foss in the period of derecognition.

b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair vaiue at the date of acguisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carriad at cost less any accumuiated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in
profit or foss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected usefui life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recoghised in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. if
not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

a) Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, SLL has elected to continue with the carrying value of ali its property,
plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previcus GAAP and
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used those carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.
b} Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred, Development expenditures on an individual project
are recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

o The technical feasinility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be
available for use or sale

° Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

s How the asset will generate future economic benefits

. The availability of resources to complete the assst

) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Foliowing initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of
the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. it is
amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the
statement of profit and Joss.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
i} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

j} Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified
in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to X April 2015, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement contains lease on the basis of facts and.circumstances existing on the date of
transitior.
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i. Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is
classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair
value of the teased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum iease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining halance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Company’s general policy on the borrowing cesis {See note 2.2.n). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset, However, if there is ne reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term

i Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee, Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the Company net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the net investment outstanding in respect of the ease.

k} Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable vahue,

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

e Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out
basis.
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e Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is detarmined on first in, first out basis.

¢ Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and cendition, Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges,
recognised in OCI, in respect of the purchases of raw materials.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sate.

impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. if any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company’s of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. in determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share
prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
aliocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present cbligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
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under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided
to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of
warranty-related costs is revised annually.

Restructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions are recognised only when the Company has a constructive obligation,
which is when a detailed formal plan identifies the business or part of the business concerned,
the location and number of employees affected, a detailed estimate of the associated costs, and
an appropriate timeline, and the employees affected have been notified of the plan’s main
features,

Decommissioning liahility

The Company records a provision for decommissicning costs of a manufacturing facility for the
production of fire retardant materials, Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value
of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of
the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The
estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate.
Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted
from the cost of the asset.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Jiabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of cne or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an ocutflow of
resourcas will be required to settle the obligation or a2 reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

B. Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is a possibie asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
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wholiy within the control of the entity.

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is
probable

Gratuity and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund s a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before
the balance sheat date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then
excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will tead to, for example, a
reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounis included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability}, are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCl in the pericd in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subseguent periods.

Accumuiated leave, which is expected tc be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. The Company recognizes expected cost of short term
employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service

The Company treats accumulated jeave expected tc be carried forward beyond twelve months,
as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial vatuation using the projected unit credit method
at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken tc the statement of profit and loss
and are not deferred.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of cne entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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i.  Financlal assets
Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and
e those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive incoma. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether SLL has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition t¢ account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income,

The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes. :

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing

the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. For purposes of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified in four categories:

° Debt instruments at amortised cost

. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

° Debt instruments, derivatives and eguity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
® Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCE

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

{8) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
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(b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solely payments
of principal and interest {SPP) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR} method. Amortised cost is
calcuiated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and
other receivables. for more information on receivables, refer to Note 9.

Debt instrument at FVTOC)

A'debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTCC! if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

{b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included within the FVTQC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported
as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPLIs a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC), is classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVIOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L,

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Companymay
make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair
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value, The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

if the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC), then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl
to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s batance sheet) when:

° The rights to receive cash fiows from the asset have expired, or

° The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially ali the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fiows from an asset or has entered into a

pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of

ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially afl of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 108, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) modei for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposures:

(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and hank balance

{b} Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC

(<) Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17

{d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result

T ‘: 18
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from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and ind AS 18
Revenue (referred to as ‘contractual revenue receivables’ in these Hlustrative financial

statements}
{e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FYTPL
{f Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment foss allowance on:
® Trade receivables or contractual revenue receivables, and

. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind-AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivabies. The provision matrix is based on jts historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-tocking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historica! observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates the following provision matrix at the
reporting date:

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposures (i.e. financial assets znd
exposures not covered under simplified approach), the Company determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts {0 recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit iosses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between zal! contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted
at the original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral 1o the
contractual terms

s
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

. Finoncial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
recejvables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integrat part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount,

. Loan commitments and financiol guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as 2 liability.

o Debt instruments measured at FYTOC!: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value,
impairment ailowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as
‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on

the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the chiective of facilitating an anzlysis that is designed

to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCH) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities

tnitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective

hedge, as appropriate,

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrewings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their ciassification, 2s described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial jiabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
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fiabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge refationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabitities designated upon initial recognition at fair vaiue through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated
as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These
gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair vaiue of such liability are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
ioss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Financial guarantee contracts

Fnancial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that reguire a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a paymaent
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liabiiity at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation. '

a} Intra group Financial guarantees
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial Hability at the time the guarantee is
issuad. The fiability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the smount
determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) or
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.




Starlite Lighting Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash
flows between the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the contractual payments
that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable 10 a
third party for assuming the cbligations. :

De-recognition

A financial lizbility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial jiability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or madification is treated as the derecognition of the original fiability and the recognition
of a new lability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instrurments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

b) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
initial recognition and subseguent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest
rate swaps and forward commoedity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate
risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initislly
reccgnised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at fair vatue. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabiiities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind-AS 102 are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into and continue to
be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the
Company’s expected purchase, sale or usage reguirements are held at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or joss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCl
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as
basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequentiy results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

. Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
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c)

° Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or & highly
probabie forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

e Hedges of & net investment in a foreign cperation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedgad,
hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an Ongoing basis to
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated,

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

The company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As
per the corporate faws in india, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair vaiue of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-
measurement recognised directly in equity. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between
the carrying amount of the liabitity and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

By 23
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e) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

In case of trade receivables that have been factored but do not meet the derecognition criteria, such
trade receivables are not netted off and the corresponding amount is shown as short term borrowings
under current financial liabilities. In case of channel financing facility, the corresponding amount is shown
as current liabilities.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent Habilities for goods and services provided to SLL prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

intra group Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are reccgnised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and subseguently at the higher of the amount determined in
accordance with Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets] or the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortization, where appropriate.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash
flows between the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the contractual payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Segment reporting

An cperating segment is a component of SL1 that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be atlocated to the segment and assess
its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

Operating segments often exhibit simiiar long-term financial performance if they have similar economic
characteristics. Two or more operating segments are aggregated by company into a single operating
segment if aggregation is consistent with the core principle of this Ind AS, the segments have similar
economic characteristics, and the segments are similar in aspects as defined by ind AS.

Company reports separately, information about an operating segment that meets any of guantitative
thresholds as defined by Ind AS. Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds,
are considered reportable and separately disciosed, only if management of SLL believes that information
about the segment would be useful to users of the financial statements

Information about other business activities and operating segments that are not reportable separately
are combined and disclosed in an “all other segments’ category

24
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In view of adoption of Ind AS effective April 1, 2016, the Company has, pursuant to the provisions of Ind
A5 108, identified its business segments as its primary reportable segments, which comprises of Lighting
Products; Air Conditioners and Water Heater Segments.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributabie to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proteeds.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the period. The
weighted average number equity shares outstanding during the period and all periods presented is
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without s corresponding change in resources. For the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit of loss for the period attributable to
equity sharenolders and the weighted average number of share cutstanding during the period is adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

for and on behalf of Board of
Starlite Lighting Limited
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Chairman
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Note 3: Property, Plant and Equipments

Amount in Rs

Particulars Land and Buitding Technical Other Total Advance Paymﬁ?
Equipment and Equipments, and Construction
Machinery Operating and in progress
Office
Egquipments
Cost _
As of Agril 1, 2015 43,63,45,586 98,01,77 852 1,32,31,490 1,42,97,54,528 17,48,14,635
L Additions 12,12,13,754 17,69,29,045 | 14,85,344 28,96,28,143
Disposals / Adjustments -
Transferred to Assets Held for Sale -
Currency Transalation “
Reclassification - {14,65,14,101)
As of 31 March, 2016 55,75,59,340 1,15,71,06,897 1,47,16,834 1,72,93,83,071 2,83,00,534
Additions © 1,760,000 | 21,34,61,576 82,283 21,37,13,859
Disposals / Adjustments 31,08,90,934 31,08,90,934 {2,83,00,534)
Transferred to Assets Held for Sale -
Currency Transalation -
Reclassification -
As of 31 March, 2017 55,77,29,340 1,05,96,77,540 1,47,99,117 1,63,22,05,997 -
Accumulated Depreciation !
As of April 1, 2018 2,90,24,185 22,77,34,606 88,70,869 26,56,29,660
Charge $9,99,312 3,05,89,352 12,21,247 4,22,09,911
Disposals / Adjustments -
Transferrad to Assets Held for Sale -
Currency Transalation -
Reclassification -
As of 31 March, 2016 3,90,23,457 25,87,23,958 1,00,92,116 30,78,39,571 -
Charge 1,19,84,320 3,89,90,395 7.74,641 5,17,49,356
Disposais / Adjustments 5,53,84,325 5,53,84,326
Transferred to Assets Held for Sale -
[Currency Transalation -
Reclassification -
As of 31 March, 2017 5,10,07,817 24,23,30,027 1,08,66,757 30,42,04,601 -
Net Carrying Amount
As of April 1, 2015 40,73,21,401 75,24,43 246 | 43 60,621 1,16,41,25,268 17.48,14,635 |
As of 31 March, 2016 51,85,35,843 89,83 82,939 46,24,718 1,42,15,43,500 2,83,00,534
As of 31 March, 2037 50,67,21,523 81,73,47 512 358,32,361 1,32,80,01,396 -




Starlite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Note No 4: Intangible Assets

Amount in Rs

Particulars

and asset under
construction

| Computer Software] Advance Payment |

Total "

Cost

As of Aprit 1, 2015

Additions

Disposals / Adjustments
Transferred to Assets Held for Sale
'Currency Transalation
Reciassification

85,58,870
44,660

85,58,870
44,560

As of 31 March, 2016

86,03,530 "

86,03,530

Additions

Disposals / Adjustments
Transferred to Assets Held for Sale
Currency Transalation
Reciassification

As of 31 March, 2017

86,03,530 -

86,03,530

Accumulated Amortisation

As of April 1, 2015

Charge

Disposals / Adjustments
Transferred to Assets Held for Sale
Currency Transalation
Reclassification

18,60,686
15,07,839

18,60,686
15,07,839 |

As of 31 March, 2016

33,68,525 -

33,68,525

Charge

Disposals / Adjustments
Transferred to Assets Meld for Sale
Currency Transalation
Reclassification

13,65,524

13,65,524

As of 31 March, 2017

47,34,049 -

47,34,049

Net Carrying Amount

As of April 1, 2015

66,908,184 -

66,98, 184

As of 31 March, 2016

52,35,005 -

52,35,005

As of 31 March, 2017

38,69,481 -

38,69,481




Starlite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Note 5: Financial Assets

5(a) Non-current investments Amount in Rs,
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Investment in equity instruments {fuliy

paid-up)

Unguoted

54,475 (31 March 2016: 54,475, 1 10,89,500 10,853,500 10,89,500

April 2015 : 54,475) Equity Shares of

'Cosmos Co-Coerative Bank Limited

NIL {31 March 20186: NIL, 1 Aprii 2015 - - - 2,70,000

13,265) Equity Shares of Akola janta

Commercial Co-Operative Bank Limited

Total (Equity Instruments) 10,89,500 10,89,500 13,59,500 |

5{b} Trade receivables Amount in Rs.
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2018 April 1, 2015

Trade Receivables 37,17,85,000 | 28,40,83,306 27,21,63,744
Receivables from related parties 6,24,37,634 11,09,38,001 13,76,38,214
Less: Allowances for doubtful dehts - - —2,34!10,1@_
Total receivables 43,42,23,634 | 39,50,21,307 38,63,91,795
Current portion 43,10,78,146 38,07,37,812 37,55,30,047
Nen-current portion 31,47,488 1,42 83 495 | 1,08,61,748
Bresk-up of secyrity details Amount in Rs.

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2015 —’

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good

43,42,23,634

39,50,21,307

38,63,91,795

Doubtful - _ - 2,34,10,163
Total 43,42,23,634| 39,50,21,307 40,98,01,958
Alfowances for doubtfu! debts - - -2,34.10,163
Total trade receivables 43,42,23 634 39,50,21,307 38,63,91,795_




Starlite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

5{c} Cash and cash equivalents

Amount in Rs.
r Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 20156 April 1, 2015
Balances with hanks
- In Current Accounts 30,91,730 2,12,256 3,69,875
- In EEFC Accounts - - -
Deposits with maturity of fess than 1,30,54,246 1,18,68,013 1,06,43,098
three months
1Cash on hand 80,169 60,282 21,006
Jﬁsta! Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,62,26,146 1,21,40,551 1,10,33,879
Disclosure of cash deposit during the demonetisation period
From OB November 2016 to 30 December 2015 Amount in Rs
Particulars Specified Bank Cther Totat
Notes {300 & 1000 denomination
denomination) notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08-11-2016 2,10,000 7,832 2,17,832
(-} Amounts deposited in banks 2,140,000 2,10,000
Closing cash in hand as on 30-12-2016 - 1,49,708 1,49,708
5{d} Other financial assets
Amount in Rs
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2015 ! April 1, 2015 ]
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
ind AS Refated - Financial Guarantee 1,33,84,822 2,15,22,302 1,36,47,493 3,49,07,124 1,36,47,493 4,85,54,617
Asset
Total other financial assgts 1,33,84,822 2,15,22,302 1,36,47,493 3,49,07,124 1.36,47,493 4,85,54,617_]




Stariite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financia! Statemants for the

Note 6: Deferred tax assets

year ended 31 March 2017

_ Amount In Rs.
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Carry Forward Lossess
- Depreciation Loss 24,34,40,611 16,24,56,518 16,59,28,383
- Business Loss 6,65,60,068 5,62,09,474 -
Accrued Expenses 5,90,884 5,64,508 | -
Gratyity 20,15,627 15,43,173 10,90,344
| Leave Encashmaent 22,13,818 16,64,286 12,03,445
31,48,21,007 22,24,37,959 16,82,22,772
Difference of WDV of Fixed Assets 19,93,81,656 17,01,48,024 12,22,76,938 .
Total 11,54,39,351 5,22,89,935 4,59,45,834
The company is recognising deferred tax asset on account of unused busingss losses and

depreciation losses based on future business plans with jts customers.

Movement in deferred tax assets Amount in Rs.

Particulars Unabsorbed Unabsorbed Defined Benefit | Provisions Other Total
depreciation loss business loss Obligations items

At 1st April 2015 16,59,28,383 - 22,94,38% B 16,82,22,772

{Charged) / credited: [

1. to profit or loss accoun: 34,71,865 (5,62,09,474} {9,13,070} (5,64,508) - [5,42,15,}.87}

2. To other comprehensive Income

3. Deferred Tax on basis adjustment

At 31 March 2016 16,24,56,518 5,62,09,474 32,07,459 | 5,64,508 22,24,37,959

{Charged) / credited:

1. 10 profit or loss account {8,09,84,093) {1,02,50,592) {10,21,987) (26,376) {9,23,83,048)

2 To other comprehensive fncome

3. Deferred Tax on basis adjustment

At 31 March 2017 24,34,40,613 6,65,60,066 42,29446| 590,884 - 31,48,21,007

lD?fference of WDV of Fixed Assets Amount In Rs.

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

WDV as per income tax act

70,88,96,653

888221578

WDV as per Companies Act 1,28,51,11,007 1,37,98,65,197
Difference In WDV (57,61,14,354) {49,16,43,619)
Tax Rate 34,608 34,608
Deferred tax Liability {15,93,81,656) {17,01,48,024)




Starlite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Note 7: Other non-current assets Amount in Rs
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Capital Advances 18,02,070 2,47,55577 2,72,98,930
Security Deposits
- With Government Authorities 1,50,000 1,580,000 1,50,000
- With Others 2,72,76,005 33,63,047 28,114,296
Balances with Govt Authorities 3,94,28 297 8,28,05,638 10,17,08,637
Total other non-current assets 6,86,56,372 11,10,74,262 13,19,71 863
Note 8: Inventories Amount in Rs
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Raw Materials 33,75,41,942 22,54,24,785 15,33,85,423
Work-in-progress 13,48,33,101 15,43,55,837 13,57,35,530
Finished goods 4,73,00,756 1.64,25,628 1,73,01,447
Good in transit - 1,93,73,237 -
Stores and Spares 2,03,44,644 2,00,91,012 95,84,565
Others 1,72,01,178 1,39,13,554 91,13,114
Total Inventories 55,72,21,661 44,95 84,053 32,51,24,083
Note 3: Other current assets Amount in Rs
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Prepayments 1,59,51,898 45,97,691 55,89,309
Advances to Suppfiers 2,31,80,194 1,17,82,564 9,74,96,330
Advances to Others 1,09,08,195 1,19,35,801 20,39,37,441
interest Receivable 11,68,196 4,87,968 1,958,802
VAT Refund Receivahle . - | 8,00,63,666
industriof Promotion Subsidy under pS/, 12,82,90,676 6,43,40,154 8,33,515
2007- Receivable
Derivative not designated as hedges .
Principal Swap 40,111,611 1,13,65,243 2,88,284
Total 18,35,10,771| 10,45,19,421 | 38,84,07,347




Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
10{a). Equity Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital

Amount in Rs
Particulars _ Equity Shares
No. INR

At 1 April 2015 1,25,00,000 12,50,00,000
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2016 1,25,00,000  12,50,00,000]
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2017 ' 1,25,00,000 12,50,00,000

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share, The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The Board of Directors

have not declared dividend for the year ending 31st March, 2017.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares w
of the company, after distribution of ail preferential amotnts, The distr

of eguity shares held by the shareholders.

Terms/ rights attached to preference shares

il be entitled to recejve remaining assets
ibution will be in froportion to the number

Class I: Each Cumulative Non-convertible preference share has a par value of INR 10, The preference shares are

redeemable in three equal instalments. The preference shares carry a dividend of 9%

perannum, payabfe at the

time of redemption. The dividend rights are cumuiative. The preference shares rank ahead of the equity shares in

the event of a liquidation.

Class I: Each Non-convertible preference share without dividend has a parvalue of INR 10. The preference shares
are redeemable at premium in three egual instalments beginning from 6th vear from the date of aliotment. The
preference shares don't carry dividend rights. The preference shares rank ahead of the equity shares in the event of

a liquidation.

Issued Equity Capital

Amount in Rs
Equity Shares of INR 10 each issued and fully paid No. INR
At 1 April 2015 1,25,00,000, 12,50,00,000
At 31 March 2016 1,25,00,000{ 12,50,00,000
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
At 31 March 2017 1,25,00,000}

Shares held by holding/ uitimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity and preference shares issued by the company, shares he
company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

12,50,00,000] -

Phd

id by its holding company, ultimate'tia

Amountin Rs

Particulars

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Bajaj Electricals Limited

23,75,000 Equity Shares 2,37,50,000 2,37,50,000
1,50,00,000 9% Preference Shares 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
3,00,00,000 Preference Shares 30,00,00,000 | 30,00,00,000
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Starfite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

11. Other Equity

Reserves and surplus

Amount in Rs

Particulars March 31, 2017 "March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 '
Capital Reserve 6,46,11,857 6,46,11,857 6,46,11,857
Securities Premuim Reserve 3,50,00,000 3,50,00,000 3,50,00,000
Retained Earning (44,93,05,472) (23,50,33,715){  {17,72,94,243)
Total Reserves and surplus (34,96,93,6__15) (13,54,21,858) (7,76,82,386)
(i} ICapital Reserve March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Opening Balance 6,46,11,857 6,46,11,857 6,46,11,857
Appropriation during the year - - .
Closing balance 6,46,11,857 . 6,46,11,857 6,46,11,857
(i} |Securities Premuim Reserve March 31, 2017 “March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Opening Balance 3,50,00,000 | 3,50,00,000 3,50,00,000
Appropriation during the year - - o
Closing balance 3,50,00,000 3,50,00,000 3,50,00,000
(iii} |Retained Earnings March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 1, 2015

Opening Balance

FVTPL - Preference Share Capital
Refer Note 1

FVTPL - Corporate Guarantee initial §
{Refer Note 2

Net Profit for the year

(23,50,33,715}

(21,42,71,757)]

{17,72,94,243)

(5,77,35,472)

{15,56,84,399)
(5,51,77,255)

6,22,02,110

(2,86,34,659)

Closing Balance

(44,93,05,472)

{23,50,33,715)

(17,72,94,243)

Note :

1. Preference Share Capital has been considered as Debt Instrument uner the newly adopted Ind
A5 by the company. Fair Value Change on Initiai recognition under ind AS has been charged to

Retained Earnings.

2. Interest rate differential on Corporate Guarantee taken from Bajaj Electricals Limited will be
amortised over the period of Corporate Guarantee under Finance Cost 'n Profit and Loss Account,
The nitial recognition amount has been charged to retained earnings. This amount sha' not be
available for distribution as it is a non-cash reserve,




starlite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2017

Note 12: Financial Liabilities

12(a) Non-current borrowings Amount in Rs.
Particulars Terms of Coupon/ March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Repayment | Interest
rate
Secured
Debentures
Non Convertible Debentures Repayable in 11.72% 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,060
two equal
instailements
after 3 years
Term Loan
From Banks
Rupee Loan 6 Monthly 12.05% 23,17,87,653 28,58,34,777 24,84,43,656
Instaliments '
tForeign currency loan (USD) Quarterly 11.75% 11,80,06,252 12,62,08,357 14,68,52,280
Repavments [
Unsecured
From Related Parties
Bajaj Electricals Limited 24,80,00,000 24,80,00,000 16,560,00,600
Deffered Payment Liabilities [
[Sales Tax Deferral Loan 6?,38,94_0 43,59,239 58,63,328
Total non-current borrowings 1,10,45,32,845 1,16,44,02,373 1,06,71,99,264
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 33,87,81,809 7,69,61,353 | 2,82,62,795
Less: interest Accrued 57682797 _ 4,03,93,424 | 3,41,50,861
Non-current borrowings 70,70,58,239 1,04,70,47,596 | _ 1,00,47,85,608
12(s) Current borrowings _ Amount in Rs.
) Particutars Terms of Coupon/ March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
repaymant interest
rate
Loans repayable on demand
Secured
From Banks
Cash Credits On Demand 10.35%| 43,63,19,863 61,46,42,319 46,64,46,682
Buyer's Credit On Demand 11.75% 2,13,57,445 | 2,27,53,536 3,26,33,324
Forward Contract Payable - - 18,70,38,047 _
Unsecured
From Refated Parties 17,45,41,177 8,84,48,814 16,37,26,531
From TATA Capital finance 10.75% 17.74,65,511 - -
j 80,96,88,096 | 72,58,45,069 85,98,44,584




Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

11.72% debtenture
The 11.72% debenture are repayable in two equal annual installements of INR 25,00,00,000 each commencing on 1 April 2018, The

Debentures are secured by pari passu first charge over fixed assets and guarantee from Bajaj Electricals Limited

HDFC Bank (Non Convertible Debentures) | INR 50,00,00,000 Interest Payment- Yearly ROI11.72%

Secured Bank Loan

131.75% Secured loan in USD
The loan is sanctioned by Yes Bank Limited and is secured by a primary security over of pari passu charge over fixed assets and

current assets and collateral security of undertaking from Bajaj Electricals Limited for maintaining shareholding at 32%

Term Loan USD 1 $.20,00,000 @ Rs 61.00/- Tenure 50 Months RO§11.75%
Term Loan USD 2 S 6,00,000 @ Rs 60.73/- Tenure 60 Months ROI 11.75% [

Secured loan in INR

Yes Bank Limited
[Termioan lINR 1,06,61,448 ! - [Tenure 60 Months ] ROI 11.25%]

Ratnakar Bank Limited
The loan is secured by 2 primary security over of pari passu charge over fixed assets and current assets and collateral security of

undertaking from Bajaj Electricals Limited for maintaining shareholding at 32%

Term Loan 1 - INR 15,00,00,000 ) Tenure 60 Months* | ROI 12.05%
Term Loan 2 INR 4,50,00,000 Tenure 60 Months* | ROE12.05%
Term Loan 3 _ INR 5,50,00,000 Tenure 60 Months* RO! 12.05%

*inc'l'uding & months morataruim

Interest rate swap

The company has an interest rate swap agresment whereby the company receives a fixed rate of interest of 11.75% and pays interest
at a variable rate. The swap is being used te hedge the exposure to changes in the fair vaiue of its fixed rate secured loan. The
decrease in fair value of the interest rate swap has been recognised in finance costs and offset with a similar gain on the bank
borrowings. The fair value remeasurment recognised in 2017 was immaterial.




Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

12(b)

12{c}

Other financial ljabijlities

Amountin Rs

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2015

Non-current

Ind AS Related - Fair Value on Pref Shares
1,60,0G,000 9% Redeemabie Preference Shares
50,00,000 9% Redeemabie Preference Shares

13,02,98,061
5,89,33,630

16,06,82,543
5,21,83,565

14,52,08,107
4,71,58,058

3,00,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares 44,51,36,318 34,61,46,524 31,28,11,080
Trade Payables 17,45,436 19,18,272 3,74,40,624
Total other non-current financial liabilites 63,61,13,445 56,09,30,904 54,26,17,879
Current '
Current Maturities of .ong Term Debt 33,97,81,809 7,69,61,353 2,82,62,795
Interest Accrued and due 2,68,43 607 1,33,51,506 78,42,899
Interest Accrued and not due 3,08,49,150 2,70,41,918 | 2,63,07,962
Total ather current financial liabilites 39,74,74,606 11,73,54,777 6,24,13,656
Trade Payables Amount in Rs
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 1, 2015
Current
Trade Payables 19,56,20,546 13,85,82,934 14,15,50,398
Trade Payables to reiated parties 14,60,58,646 62,68,028 44,58,301
Total Trade Payables 34,16,79,192 14,48,50,962 14,64,08,699

Terms and conditions of the akove financiat liabilities:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normal

ly settled on 50-day terms
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Starlite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Note 15: Revenue from operations

Amount in Rs

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Sale of products
(including excise duty)
Sale of Plant & Machinery

96,82,49,791
23,19,06,982
24,17,904

1,50,80,80,304
7,05,99,626
31,358,286

Qther operating revenue
Total

1,20,25,74,677

1,58,18,19,226

Sales of goods includes Excise duty collected from customers of INR 12,13,25,684
{31 March 2016: INR 15,82,84,600) Sale of goods net of excise duty is INR
84,6%,24,107 (31 March 2016: INR 1,34,97,95,704)

Note 16: Other income and other gains/(losses)

Other income

Amount in Rs

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Dividend Income 87,226 1,08,950
Interest income 14,66,565 26,11,100
Discount Received 21,639 5,08,743
Government grants 6,40,47,063 6,35,06,638
Industrial Promotion Subsidy

Under PSt 2007

Total 6,56,22,492 6,67,35,431

The company has been issued eligibility certificate under Package Scheme of
Incentives, 2007, Under the scheme, the company is entitled for Industrial
Promotional Subsidy of Rs, 9,545.95 lakhs or to the extent of the amount of taxes
payable under MVAT Act 2002 & CST Act 1956, by the project in respect of sale
of finished products, eligible for incentive after adjustment of set off or other
credit available within a period of seven years , whichever is lower . The Eligibitity
Certificate is issued in respect of manufacturing of Compact Fluorescent Lamps
and its accesseries |, Tube Lights, Luminaries and its accessories ,Electronic iron,
Induction Cookers , Electric Fans and its accessories and Electronic Domestic
Appiiances and its Accessories. In addition to these products , the Company has
considered taxes paid by it, in respect of additional items / products for claiming
Industrial Promotional Subsidy , for which apptication to the implementing agency

has been made.




Starlite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Note 17(a): Cost of materials consumed

Amountin Rs
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 20156
Raw materials at the beginning of the year 24,47,98,023 15,33,85,423
Add: Purchases 95,72,12,409 1,14,25,78,520
Add: Direct Expenses 7,22,65,669 10,14,07,837
Less: Raw material at the end of the year 33,75,41,942 } 24,47,98,023
Total cost of material consumed 93,67,34,159 1,15,25,77,757

Note 17(b}: Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods

Amount in Rs

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Opening balance
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Traded goods

15,43,55,837
1,64,25,628

13,57,35,530
1,73,01,447

Total opening balance

Closing balance
Work-in-progress

17,07,81,465

13,48,33,101

15,30,36,977

15,43,55,837

Finished goods 4,73,00,796 1,64,25,628
Traded goods - -
Total closing balance 18,21,33,897| 17,07,81,465

Total changes in inventories

{1,13,52,432)

(1,77,44,488)

Note 18: Employee benefit expense

Amount in Rs

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,36,57,168 4,30,28,125
contribution to provident fund 45,001,400 41,54,882
Gratuity 11,67,630 8,40,644
Leave Compensation 25,745 13,61,175
Staff weifare expenses 10,37,210 11,47,719
Total employee benefit expense 5,03,89,152 5,05,32,545

Note 18: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Amount in Rs

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 5,17,49,356 4,22,09.911
Depreciation of investment properties - .
Amortisation of intangible assets 13,865,524 15,0"7,839
Total Depreciation and amortisation 5,31,14,880 4,37,17,750




Starlite Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2017

Note 20: Other expenses Amount in Rs
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2015
Sub-contracting expenses 12,10,400 13,03,833
Security Charges 21,72,739 23,97,864
Freight and forwarding charges 17,42,405 85,55,795
Rent 20,55,500 21,111,800
Rates and taxes 9,17,887 6,47,225
Insurance 14,70,391 4,49,602
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 11,43,559 17,00,434
Buildings 71,490 85,600
Others 4,28,860 6,26,255
Equipment Hire Charges 53,55,000 91,80,000
Advertising and sales promotion 52,513 5,986,786
Brokerage and discounts 89,06,527 95,09,416
Traveiling and conveyance 59,20,413 42,42,121
Communication costs 5,18,810 7,15,719
Printing and stationery 1,28,168 1,48,721
Legal and professional fees 45,11,108 | 21,884,872
Office Expenses 9,94,275 7,06,618
Payment to auditor {Refer detalls below) 5,51,807 551,176
Exchange differences (net) 61,87,314 52,57,130
Investment written off - 2,70,000
Miscellaneous expenses 34,10,258 34,79,156
Donations/Corporate Social Responsibility 1,100 -
Fair vaiue loss on Desposits 24,710 {1,835)
Total other expenses 4,87,75,235 5,57,18,489
Note 20{(a): Details of payments to auditors Amount in Rs
' Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Payment to auditors
As audiior:
Audit fee 5,00,000 5,00,000
Tax audit fee - -
Re-imbursement of expenses 51,807 51,176
Total Payments to auditors 5,51,807 5,51,176
Note 20{b): Corporate social responsibility expenditure Amount in Rs
' Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Contribution to Charity Organisation 1,100 -
Total 1,100 -
Amount required tc be spend as per section 135 of the Act
Amount spent during the year on
(i} Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
(if) on purpose other than (i) above 1,100 -
Note 21: Finance Cost Amount in Rs
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Interest on debts and borrowings 24,05,27,032 19,27,28,340
Other borrowing cost 1,63,82,340 85,27,635
interest on Others 4,07,518 69,626
‘Total interest expense 25,73,16,890 | 20,13,25,601
Ind AS Fair Value Change in Preference Shares 7,53,55,377 5,38,35,377
Ind AS Financia! Guaraniee - Amortisation 1,36,47,493 1,36,47,493
34,63,19,760 26,88,08,471
Forex Premuim - 2,88,284
Total finance costs 34,63,19,760 26,50,96,755




Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Note 22: Research and development costs

The company's Research and development unit concencrates on the development of air congition and

water heater. Expenditure by the said unit amounts to INR 4,49,105 of which INR 1,00,000 has been
capitaiised,

Note 23 : Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are caiculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,

Amount in Rs
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Profit attributable to equity holders of the {21,42,71,757) (5,77,39,472)
Company
Weighted average number of Equity shares 76,895,000 76,95,000
Basic EPS -27.85 -7.50
Diluted EPS -27.85 -7.50

Note 24: Commitments and Contigencies

(a) Leases

The company has entered into operating leases on certain items of machinery, with lease terms between

three and five years. The company has the option, under some of its leases, to lease the assets for
additional terms of three to five years.

Amount in Rs

- Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Within one year 8,28,56,884 1,61,43,300 91,80,000
After one year but not more than five years 34,56,50,177 | 48,62,38,282 1 -
More than five years - _ - -
42,85,07,061 50,23,81,582 91,380,000

{(b) Contingent Liability

] Amount in Rs.
31 March 2017 | 31 Mar_ch 2016 31 March 2015

C Form 1,71,97,038 1,46,45,821 05,856,626
Bank Guarantee 1,79,11,30C 7,43,78,500 1,79,11,300
Unpaid Preference Dividend 1,67,15,385 1,62,48,330 8,43,65,640
Bills Discounted 27,8101 27,810 -

Industrial Promotion Subsidy under PSI, 2007 12,83,87,216 6,43,40,153 8,33,515

Total | 18,02,38,749|  16,96,40,614 _11,26,97,081
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Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2017

Note 26 : Segment Information
No operating segments have been agregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

The Management monitors the operating resuits of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, Segment performance is
evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financiaf
statements. :

Geographic information Amount in Rs
Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 20186
Revenue from externai

customers*

India 1,08,15,12,863 1,43,44,31,997
Ouiside India 6,55,65,248 5,26,09,267
Total Revenue 1,14,70,78,111 1,48,70,41,264

*The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.




Starlight Lighting Limited

Notes to the Financia) Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Note 27: Reconciliation of equity as at date of transition (01 April 2015}

Balance Sheet

Particulars Note No.| Previous GAAP Adjustments April1,2015
ASSETS
Non-current asssts
Property, Plant and Eguipment 3 1,16,41,25 248 - 1,16,41,25 268
Capital work in progress 3 17,48,14,635 - 17,48,14,635
Other Intangible assets 4 66,98,184 - 66,98,184
Financial assets
Investments 5(a) 13,59,500 - 13,59,500
Trade receivables 5(b) - (1.08,61,748) 1,08,61,748
Other financial assets 53(d) - (4.85,54,617) 4,85,54.617
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 4,59,45,834 - 4,59,45,834
Other Non-Current Assets 8 3,02,63,226 (10,17,08,637) 13,19,71,863
Total Non-Current Assets 1,42,32,06,647 (16,1 1,25,002)| 1,58,43,31,649
Current assets
Inventories 9 32,51,24,083 - 32,51,24,083
Financial assets
Trade receivables 5(0) 38,63,91,795 1,08,61,748 37,55,30,047
Cash and cash equivaients 5{c} 1,10,33,979 - 1,10,33,979
Other financial assets 3{d) - (1,36,47,493) 1,36,47,493
Other current assets 10 48,98,27,699 10,14,20,352 38,84,07,347
1,21,23,77,556 9,86,34,607 1,11,37,42 949
Assets classified as held for sale - -
Total Carrent Assets 1,21,23,77,556 9,86,34,607 1,11,37,42,949
TOTAL ASSETS 2,63,55,84,203 {6,24,90,395) 2,69,80,74,598
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11{a) 57.50,00,000 45,00,00,000 12,50,00,000
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 12 (8.49,95,526) {73,13,140) (7.76,82,386)
Other reserves 12 -
Financial Guarantee - - -
Total equity 49,00,04,474 44,26,86,860 4,73,17,614
LIABILITIES
. INon-current labilities
" [Financial Habilities
Borrowings 13(a) 1,00,47,85,608 - 1,00,47,85,608
Other financial liabilitieg 13(b) - (54,26,17,879) 54,26,17,879
Provisions 14 .
Employee defined benefit liabilities 15 49,71,261 - 49,71,261
Deferred tax liabitities {net)
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities 1,00,97,56,869 {(54,26,1 7,879) 1,55,23,74,748
Current labilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13(a) B5,98,44,584 - 85,98,44,584
Trade payables 13(c} 18,38,49,323 3,74,40,623 14,64,08,700
Other financial liabilities 13(h) - (6,24,13,656) 6,24,13,656
Provisions 14 - -
Employee defined benefit liabilities 15 17,78,925 - 17,78,925 _
Other Current Liabilities 16 9,03,50,027 6,24,13,656 2,79,36,371"
1,13,58,22,859 3,74,40,623 1,09,83,82,2535'

Tetal Current Liabilites

1,13,58,22,859

3,74,40,623

Tota! liabilities

2,14,55,79,728

(50,51,77,256)

2,65,07,56,984

TOTAL EQUITY AND LABILITIES

2,63,55,84,203

(6.24,90,395)

2,69,80,74,598"




Starlite Lighting Limited

Note 27: Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2016

Balance Sheet

I Note No.|  Previous GAAP Adjustments March 31, 2016 ]
ASSETS
Non-current assets .
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,42,15,43,500 - 1,42,15,43,500
Capital work in progress 3 2,83,00,534 - 2,83,00,534
Cther Intangible assets 4 52,35,005 - 52,35,005
Financial assets
Investments 5{a) 10,89,500 - 10,89,509
Trade receivables 5(b) - (1,42,83,495) 1,42,83,495
Other financial assets 5(d) - (3.49,07,124) 3,49,07,124
Deferred tax assets (net) & 5,22,89,935 - 5,22,89,935
Other Non-Current Assets 8 2,82,66,789 (8,28,07,4-73) 11,10,74,262
Total Non-Current Assets 1,53,67,25,263 [13,19,98,(}92] 1,66,87,23,355
Current assets
Inventories g 44,95,84 053 - 44,95 84,053
Financial assets
Trade receivahles 5(b) 39,50,21,305 1,42,83,493 38,07,37.812
Cash and cash equivalents 5(c) 1,26,97,636 5,57,085 1,21,40,551
Other financiai assets 5(d)} (1,36,47,493) 1,36,47,4593
Other current assets 10 15,53,57.171 5,08,37,750 10,45,19,421
1,01,26,60,165 5,20,30,835 96,06,29,330
Assets classified as held for sale -
Total Current Assets 1,01,26,60,165 5,20,30,835 96,06,29,330
TOTAL ASSETS 2,54,93,85,428 (7,99,67,258) 2,62,93,52 686
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11{a} 57,50,00,000 45,00,00,000 12,50,00,000
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 12 (8,44,32,034) 5,09,89,824 [13,54,21,858)
Other reserves 12 -
Financial Guarantee - -
Totai equity 49,05,67,966 50,09,89,824 (1,04,21,858)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabiiities
Borrowings 13{a) 1,04,70,47 596 - 1,04,70,47 596
Other financial liabilities 13(b) [56,09,30,904] 56,09,30,904
Provisions 14 71,85,984 71,85,984 -
Employee defined benefit liabilities 15 {71,85,984) 71,85,984
Deferred tax liabilities [net)
Other non-current liabilities 19,18,272 19,18,272
Total non-current liabilities 1,05,61,51,852 (55,90,12,632} 1,61,5 1,64,484
Current liabilities
Finaneial Habilities A
Borrowings 13(a) 72,64,02,154 557,084 72,58,45;0_70 :
Trade payabies 13(c) 14,48,50,962 - 14.48,50,962. |
Other financial liabilities 13{h) (11,73,54,777) 11,73,54,777
Provisions 14 20,81,985 20,81,985 -
Employee defired henefit labilities 15 (20,81,985) 20,81,985
Other Current Liabilities ia 12,93,30,510 9,48,53,244 3,44,77.266

1,00,26,65,611

(2,19,44,449)

1,02,46,10,060

Total Current Liabilites

1,00,26,65,611

(2,19,44,449)

1,02,46,10,060

Total liabilities

2,05,88,17,463

(58,09,57,081)

2,63,97,74,543

TOTAL EQUITY AND LABILITIES

2,54,93,85,428

(7,99,67,258)

2,62,93,52,686




Starlite Lighting Limited

Note 27: Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016
Statement of profit and loss

L Particulars l Note No.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue from operations

Other income
Other gains
Total ncome

Adjustments

Previous GAAP J

1,48,70,41,264 (9.47,77,962)
32,28,793 (6,35,06,638)

1,58,18,19,22¢
6,67,35,431

1,64,85,54,657

1,49,02,70,057 |

(15,82,84,600)

EXPENSES
Cost of raw material consumed
Purchase of traded goods

(increase)/ decrease in inventories of
finished goods, work-in-progress and
traded goouds

Excise duty

Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Impairment of non-current assets
Other expenses

1,15,25,77,757 -

1,15,25,77,757

(1,77,44,488) - (1,77,44,488)

- (15,82,84.600) 15,82,84,600
5,09,87,367 4,54,822 5,05,32.545
4,37,17,750 - 4,37,17,750

5,38,21,435 (18,97,054) 5,57,18,489

Finance Cost 20,16,13,885 6,74,82,870 26,90,96,755
Total expense 1,48,49,73,706 (22,72,09,702) 1,71,21,83,408
Profit/(loss)} before exceptional items

and tax from continuing operations 52,96,351 6,89,25,107 (6,36,28,75 1}
Share of {profit}/1nss of an associate and g

joint venture

Profit/(loss)before exceptional items

zand tax from contmumg operations 52,96,35] 6,89.25,102 (6,36,28,751 )
Exceptional items 24 -
Profit/(loss)before and tax from

continuing operations 52,96,351 6.89,25,102 (6,36,28,751)
{1} Current tax

(2} Adjustinent of tayx relating to earlier

periods -

(3) Deferred tax N (63,44,101) - (63,44,101)
Income tax expense (63,44,101) - [63,44,101}
Profit for the year from continuing

operations 1,16,40452 6,89,25,102 (5.72,84,650)
Boﬁt/(loss) for the year ] 1,16,40,452 6,89,25,102




